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Notice of Opportunity for Hearing
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Dear Dr. McGee:
The Food and Drug Admmustratlon (FDA)- -has lnformatlon mdncatmg that you repeatedly
or deliberately violated federal regulations in  your capacity as investigator in clinical

. trials with unlicensed blological and investigational new drugs, specffically,
—— The violations provlde the basis for the withdrawal of your eligibliity as a

4v,
Vs

By letter dated June 21, 2001 the Center for BlOlOgICS Evaluation and Research
(CBER) informed you of the speclﬁc matters complained of and offered you an
opportunity to respond to them in ‘writing or at an informal conference pursuant to

§ 312.70(a) of Title 21 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR). The letter also gave
you the option of entering.into a consent agreement with the agency, thereby
terminating any administrative proceeding. You chose to respond at an informal
conference conducted on August 24, 2001. The informal conference was transcribed,
and a copy of the transcript was provided to your counsel. You provided written exhibits
to supplement your presentation. CBER has considered your explanations and
concluded that they are unacceptable because they fail to adequately address the
violations set forth below. Accordingly, you : ére being offered an opportunity for a
regulatory heanng pursuant to 21 CFR Part 16 on the questxon of whether you are
entitied fo receive investlgatlonal new drugs T

A listing of specific violations follows. Apphcable pro\nsrons of the CFR are cited for
each violation.

1.  You failed to fulfill the general responsibillties of investigators.
[21 CFR § 312.60].

An investigator is responsible for ensuriﬁg that an investigation is conducted
according to the signed investigator statement; the investigational plan, and
applicable regulations; for protecting the rights, safety, and welfare of subjects
under the investigator's care; and for the control of drugs under investigation.
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Oon' ", you signed the Form FDA 1572 “Statement of
Investigator” in which you agreed to-conduct the study in accordance with the
protacol and applicable regulations.. Our investigation revealed that you did not
fulfill your obligations as a clinical investigator in the use of unlicensed biological
drugs and investigational new drugs for the following reasons:

A

You enrolled several subjecfs who were not eligible for the study;
see item (2), below.

You failed to obtain proper Institutional Review Board (IRB) approval of
protocol modifications; see items 2(A) and 3, below.

You failed to perform the study procedures required by the protocol to
monitor the effects of the study drug in subjects; see item 2(B), below.

You failed to abide by the safety provisions required in the protocol;
see item 2(C),below. "~ =~ .

You permitted subjects to setf-administer the investigational
without your supervisior and without IRB approval; see items 3(D) and 4,
below. a ot o

You failed to control the investigational drug; see item 4, below.

2. Youfailed to ensure that an investigation is conducted according to the
investigational plan (protocol). [21 CFR § 312.60].

A.

Subjects who failed to meet the éligib’ility' criteria were allowed to
participate in the clinical trial.

Subject Subject Entry Status ' Protocol Requirement

—— | 2 weeks past previous:

: therapy
Age 2 75 years old
Corticosteroids within past
week
-——~ Hemoglobin = 8.0 g/d!

60%.

Age 2 75 years old o ‘_—- ,__l

Kamofsky performance of L -
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Interferon within last 4.weeks}‘ F ' 7

Antibiotic treatment of
infection . ' i
Corticosteroids w:thln past
week B
Recent treatment with other -
_therapies L. -
"Recent treatment thh other
therapies _
Stage lIA melanoma

History of muitiple myeloma

Cortloosterolds wlthln ‘past T
week . 'x y
History of prostate @ncer with |-

bore motastases ™ ' "
Stage l melanuma

Bt U S

Stagelmelanoma — [ j —

*
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During the informal conference’ you confirmed that subjects =——
and. ~— ~’, and therefore did not meet the age

——40 pamapate in the trial. You stated, “We submitted the
protocol amendmen1 and got their verbal approval and then had the
official written approval after that, but watted until they said we
could begir. —————4hpse patients.” Even if frue, your explanation
would be instifficient, as undocumented "verbal approval” from an
individual IRB member |s msuﬂ'ment to justify deviation from your
approved protocof

On the contrary you: fanled to wuthhold the —— until you
received proper IRB approval of the protocol amendment to delete
the upper age limit of 74. SUbjectq received the first
~——. ofthe: —_ “° " nowever,
the handwritten notation:by Dr.. Plunket (IRB Chair) reading “Full

Approved™ is dated F

o
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Likewise, your ’ letter to Dr. Obiri at CBER
misleadingly implies that you had not yet enrolled and t~——
subjects who were beyond your protocol's initial age restriction. it
states, "We would like to delete the upper age limit, as several
patients qualifying for treatment in all respects other than being less
than 75 years of age have requested treatment.” In fact, by that
time, you already had subjects . in the trial and had
given them —— of the investigational product. The

~ documentation further states that IRB approval of the waiver fon'n§
- thémselves were “reviewed and approved effective * =

~—— over a year after the initial ’ rof subjects

The protocol excludes subjects who were taking corticosteroids,

* yet you enrolled subjects , into the study.

During the informal conference, you stated that “steroids are
lmmunosuppressanbto same extent” and that the use of steroids )
“might bidck ot blind your ability to detect an immune response to

tHe == Yoi explained thaf you enrolied the subjects into the
study bec‘,aube mu were able tn cdllect safetydata. -

We do not agree with your explanaticn One of the objectives of
this study is‘to establish the -._—-", ability to elicit an inmune
response in subjeuts with-advanced melanoma. The enroliment of
these subjects was map‘propnate because you were aware that
these immunosuppressed subjects would likely not be able to
produce an immune response to the - — ~hen that
was one of the purposes of the study. Although you state that you
intended to obtain safety data from these subjects, you were not
justified in enrolling thége ineligible subjects because you exposed
them to the unknown risks of an mvestigat:onal —without the
expectatlon of a beheﬁt "o

Subject- —failed to meet severar ellglbillty criteria (see table
above). During the informal conference, you indicated that subject
—had recsiveda blood transfusion and that the subject's
hemoglobin had risen to 8.0 g/dl at the time of the subject’s
enrollment, and that the Kamofsky scote increased to 70% after the
blood transfusion. -

In fact, according to the document; you provided during the
informal conference, on the date 'of the first——— of the
investigational ~————, subject ~—-had a hemoglobin of 8.0 g/dl,
and a Kamofsky score 'of 60%. Therefore, subject ——should have
been excluded from the study because the subject failed to meet

i
AL
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these protocol eligibility requirements :
- e ene—

a———
- -
D -

ettt

You further explained that you submitted a protocol amendment on
to allow subjects with a Kamofsky score of at least
50% to participate in the study. We do not accept this explanation
in relation to subjec. ——because you submitted the protocol
amendment to the IRB after the: subject died on .
You submitted the Eligiblility Criteria Waiver to the IRB for review
and approval on ", eleven months after the first

ep———

iv. During the informal conference, you stated that the protocol should
have been amended to remove the criterion excluding patients who
had an gctive infection requiring antibiotics within the pastyveek. ¢
However, because you falled to'amend the protocol, subject .
should have been excluded from the study.

V. Subjects ———————__ should have been excluded from the
study because they’ had received treatment for their cancers within
the past four weeks (see iable above) 'yet you enrolled the subjects

anyway. .

During the informal conference, you stated, “the issue again is all of
those treatments are immunosuppressive to some extent
(chemotherapy, radiation therapy, and surgery). So, it may weaken
efficacy data, but | did not think it would effect the collection of
safety data...."

We do not accept your explanation because you were aware that
immunosuppressed subjetts would likely not be able to produce an
immune response to the " — > when that was one of
the purposes of the study. Although you suggest that you intended
to obtain safety data from these subjects, you were not justified in
enrolling these ineligible subjects because you exposed them to the
unknown risks of an investigational without the expectation
of a benefit.
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vi.  Subject —ad a history of multiple myeloma and stage lIA
melanoma at the time of enroliment. At the informal conference,
you explalned that you amended the protocol to include, ————
.~ However, you submitted the proposed protocol
amendment to the IRB on . , after the subject
received the first . —
You did not submit an *Eligibility Criteria Waiver” form to the
IRB until six months later; on’ During the
informal conference, you stated that this subject was
immunosuppressed because of - - D

——— when that was one of the purposes of the study. Indeed,
the presence of other cancers was an exclusion criterion and this
subject should have been excluded. As you acknowiedged, she
"had no business being in the clinical trial."

vii. Dunng the informal confeterice, you acknowledged that subject —_—
had a history of pmstaté carlcer with bone metastases at the time
of enrollrnent —

,_.,_...__....-———----- . but
was exposed to the unkhown nsks of an investigational
without the expectation ofa beneﬁt.

vii.  Subjects - had ——— , yet you enrolled them
in the study During the informal conference, you expressly
acknowledged that it was mappropriate to have included them in
this study.

B. You failed to perform the study procedures required by the protocol. For
example:

i. You failed to evaluate subjects’ immune response to the ——. by
delayed type hypersensttlvlty (DTH). The following table shows
that DTH testing w_?g not reported on the following weeks:

Subject# g Weekjs) #
-— " 92"
— 20
S —— 5., 20, 56 i

During the infofmial conferénice, you confirmed that the DTH testing
was not done for the last two or three doses for subject . ~—and at
week 20 for subject ——__

BN
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In regards to subject ~—Tthe documents that you provided during
the informal conference do not document that DTH testing was
assessed on weeks 5 (6/23/88), 20 (1 OMW) at
48 or 72 hours after administration of the . —== -
During the informal conference, you explained That documentation
of DTH reactions “is hit or miss.”

Further, the protocol required two people to evaluate each DTH
response before it is recorded to-cantrol bias in' assessing the
immune response to the During the informal conference,
you acknowledged that the third nurse coordinator probably did not
have two people involved to evaluate each DTH response. in
addition, in your response letter dated January 25, 2001, fo the
Form FDA 483, inspectional Observations, you explain that “two
people did not always evaluate each DTH response.”

. ® e . . ?
i, Theidls nd dgcuimentation that you perfored all labordtory tests
‘arid'ciinical procadures At the intervals required by the protocol.
There ate o réEoros doburmienting that heriatology and chemistry
bloud tests'werd parfaftied for subjeédts ~— at
week 4. During'the informal confererice, you acknowledged that
some laboratory tests were not conducted at week 4.

C.  You did not follow the protocd! requirentent to discontinue the
investigational - — for sevetal subjetts with documented progression
of disease. The protoctl amendment dated 1/30/97 states, “If a patient’s
disease should progress as defined by~ -

=~ “criterid, future — will be halted, and the

patient will be referred for appropriate multidisciplinary «

" Several Subjects met <= criteria of disease progression,
but they were not discontinued from the -~ Examples include the
following: R :

P

i. Subject —' was eni:o_‘:e:s'i in the study ot ~~—— with

AR A —  as documented

in the medical records in. ——— - yet you continued to administer
the -in violation of the protocol. Subject —received the
firs, ~— ‘ - and continued to receive
— ______', an additional two years.

=

TR
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i, in a letter dated ;o the subject — physician, you
acknowledge that subject —had a “recurrence or progression of
disease.” The outpatient history/physical record documents
recurrent nodules on the right pelvis and para aortic. Subject —
was administered four doses of — after this date,
before ending on —==

During the informal conference, you described that you obtained
IRB and FDA pemission to continue additional doses of the
investigationa. following debulklnl surgery. In fact, you
had already administered four additional doses of : ~— 2 before
you submitted the request to the IRB and the FDA, according to the
document you provided FDA during the informal conference.

iii. The medical records for subject —document recurrence or
progressron ofdisease, but you continued to administ gr
~—— For example, a Progrbss Note dateq ~—~—— oouments
that the subject’ hau
‘ “vand now wlth ‘definite recurrence inthe lymph
nodes of the neck." Vo

¢

Cat

We do not accept the eXplanahon presenwd during the informal
conference. You stated that af the time of the study, patients whose
disease had progressed ' “sHould be stopped at that point” and
discontinued from'the study. 'You further-explained that you later thought
that “because of the nature of imimunitherapy” you could continue to
administer the -for addi'tional perlods

A|though you eventually requested FDA approval to treat subjects with
progressuve or recurrent disease, in a letter to FDA dated
——=", you did not have permission to deviate from this protocol
requirement at the time that subjects ( — were enrolled in
the study Indeed, you acknowledged at the informal conference that "it
\rllvas in the protocol and we devnated frqm the protocol. We shouldn't
ave." ,

D. Several subjects received concurrent radiotherapy, chemotherapy,
immunotherapy, ar othertreatment in violation of the protocol, which
specffically excludes such concurrent treatment. Examples include the
following:

l. Subject «——was adhninl,étered interferon and chemotherapy
' concurrently with the investigational
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ii. Subject — was administered the

with interferon treatment. The'
Sheet” dated —— reports “...unable to determine if the side

effects related to-
same day (—

iii. Subject — was administered the

2 concurrently

—2 Summary

recsived double dose of Interferon the

rom

. During that périod. the subject

received several courses of chemotherapy and radiotherapy.

iv. The" — iy Summary Sheet" datea documents
that subject . completed seven weeks of radiation therapy.
V. Study records document additional subjects as receiving concurrent
therapy.
gubject# Treatment. Reason Date
. . ..Started
] ] Radioth | Prostate cancer .
intron/Interferon | ___Melanoma |
Intron/Interferon Mulitiple myeloma
| Chemotherapy Melanoma (]
. . Intron/interferon Melanoma -

We note that subjects '————, and . — were administered
concurrent therapies for treatment of other cancers that should
have excluded these subjects from the study.

During the informal conference, you acknowledged that you were aware of
these concurrent therapies, yet continued to administer the investigational
———— in violation of this protocol requirement. You stated, "The issue
again is all of those treatments. are immunosuppressive to some extent
(chemotherapy, radiation therapy, and surgery). So, it may weaken
efficacy data, but | did not think it would effect the collection of safety

data....”

The continued administration of investigational ~——— o these

subjects was inappropriate because immunosu

ppressed sul_:jects would

likely not be able to produce:-an immune response to the r ———

Although you state that you intended to obtain safety data from

these subjects, the protocol prohibited further administration of the ' ———
to tt:lese subjects. The continued administration of the —__ : to these
subjects exposed them to unknown risks without the expectation of a

benefit.
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E. The protocol required the primary series of eight .. ;- 1 each
week for eight weeks, and thena — every —— months (weeks 20,
32, 44, 56, 68, 80, 92, and 104) for 2 years, for a total of 16, ~—
You did not follow the protocol-mandateo —-__: schedule for several

subjects.
i You administered an additiona: to subjec —on
week 45 !) without IRB approval; see item 3B.

At the informal conference you provided documentation that on
the IRB approved additional —————

ii. You administered extra doses of
26— 27 —— 28
IRB approval; see item 3B.

~ to subject — at weeks
- and 29 —without

At the informal conference, you stated that you asked for IRB approval for
these additional s ——— - A¢cording 1o the documentation you provided
at the informal conference, you did not receive IRB approval until
after you had already admlnistered the axtra You did not even
submit the request to the IRB Utk —— , after you had administered
extra and unscheduled of the Contrary to your
response at the informal conference, you did not have IRB permission for
these In addition, you did not have permission from FDA until
— see item 3B, below.

F. Vital signs were not abtained 30 minutes afte — of the i
—— for subjects "—(on week 5), — (on week 8), and —* (on weeks

3, 4, 5, and 7). During the informal conference, you did not provide
documentation to verify whether subjects — ————had the vital signs
measured following tr. — * The protocol states, “Patients
will be required to remain in the physician’s office for 30 minutes
afterward. The vital signs will be checked again.” The purpose of
measuring the subject s v:tal signs was to momtor for any potential allergic
reaction.

During the mformal conference you acknowledged that vital signs were
not always obtained 30 miriutes aft. for several subjects. In
addition, your response letter datec —— — _—_— to the Form FDA
483, Inspectional Observations, states, “. th|s protocol condition was not
strictly enforced following later —=

PP
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3.  You failed to obtain IRB approval prior to implementing protocol
amendments or changes in the research activity. [21 CFR § 312.66].

A

You failed to obtain prior IRB approval to waive the entry criteria for
several subjects. On = , you submitted “Eligibility Criteria Waiver”
request forms to the [RB Chair requesting approval to permit the
enroliment for ten ineligible subjects (. -
——3; and — . However, you had already administered the
investigational - ‘o these subjects.during the period of — _ to
~——"_well before the IRB Chair granted the protocol waivers on
Three of these subjects were dead by the time you submitted the
waiver requests to the IRB. The following table shows that subjects were
administered the study " several months to one year before the
waivers were granted.

The IRB did hot apprové all ofthese Eligibility Criteria Waivers until
— . specifically and expressly noting that “these were

reviewed and approved effective " further evidencing
the impropriety of enrolling and ~——— the subjects before that date.
Additionally, afte- . you continued enrolling ineligible

subjects without obtaining prior IRB approval. You submitted additional
walvers to the IRB for review and approval after the subjects were enrolled
in the study, as documented in the following table:

*The IRB approved the waiver for subjects ( —————
— respectively.




Page 12 - Dr. J. Michael McGee

During the informal conference, you stated, “Those [waivers] were
supposed to be sent to the IRB for approval as the protocol says.

She did not understand that at first." You further indicated that eleven of
those waivers were all filed at once when you discovered the study nurse
had not been filing them. Although site personnel may have been
delegated the responsibility for submission of the waivers, the clinical
investigator retains responsibility for ensuring that the waivers were
appropriately submitted to the IRB for review and approval.

The onglnal protocol approved by the IRB states that exclusion criteria
could be waived by the "Sponsor-Investigator on a case-by-case-basls
after approval” from the IRB. As the author of the protocol, you
established this protocol requirement, but failed to abide by it, explaining
instead that in some cases, you obtained verbal acquiescence from a
single IRB member. This neither satisfies the protocol, nor does it permit
the IRB to adequately assure the protechon of subjects or prospective
subjects. .

During the informal conference, you stated *for the most part we had
verbal approval® of the walvers, acknowledging that you lacked approval in .
certain cases. Not only is verbal approval insufficient, but approval sought
after the fact for an action already taken is meaningless. There is also no
contemporary evidence to dotument that you obtalned prior verbal IRB
approval of your waiver requests, even Iif such a procedure were
permissible. Indeed, the fact that the IRB subsequently issued written
approvals for the waivers tends to prove that you circumvented the proper
IRB review process; it shows that you submitted the waiver requests after
you had already enrolled the subjects and initiated . —
despite the fact that the IRB had a procedure for formal, written waiver
approval, which you did not utilize.

B. In a letter to the IRB dated — you requested pemmission to “...give
two of our Jrotocol patients [subjects —————— four
additional - You made a similar request to FDA in a letter dated
~— However, the * Visit Tracking Log" for subject

~- documents that the subject received four (4) additional weekly
- .on — {week26), '— .(week27), —— week
28), (week 29) without IRB approval (see also item 2(E)(u)

above) You also admlmstered an additional T ——==—— to subject
'——-or; week 45 ] ——— uithout IRB approval (see also item 2(E)(i),
above). o
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You failed to withhold the addmonal . until the IRB had reviewed
and approved your request. The IRB Chair gave qualified approval of the

additional (— on. ———5—— An “Administrative Note”
dated —- , from the IRB Chalr to Dr. McGee, indicates that
. the IRB reviewed and approved your request effective F ~ S

with the understanding that this procedure has been given approval from

the FDA. However, FDA approved the additional —— on —————
—— Therefore, at the time of the IRB action on your request, you did not -
have FDA permission for the additional-. —, and therefore, failed to
follow the IRB instructions.  °

C. On —7, you submitted a protocol amendment to the IRB to delete the
upper age limit of 74 years. You failed to wait for full IRB approval before
you implemented the protoaol amendment and, on ——Z, you

administered the firs. i
' The |RB Chair approved the protogol
ameéndment or. after‘ihe had occurred. See item 2Ai,
above.
D.  You permitted subjects to self-admmister the ~~— _without

IRB approval. On " ~———— " you informed FDA of the death of subject
——on study, and desctibéd that the subject “was instructed on study drug
self-administration” from ", through .'
In addition, the inspection revealed that subjec — was given two doses
of —for self-admimstraﬁon i However, it was not until
—_— . that the IRB tentatively approved the self-
administration of the - —and GM-CSF contingent upon
requested changes. The IRB Qhair approved this protocol amendment on

‘—

Your response letter to the Form FDA 483 states that you sought IRB
approval to permit subjécts to seif-administer the —
~—— However, the IRB approval for this protocol amendment was
obtained more than two (2) years after subjects started self-
administration of the and eight (8) manths after subject «~———_
death. ‘ N

During the informal conference, you acknowledged that you did not have
prior IRB approval for self-administration.

v
Ll R
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4. You failed to control the investigational drug. [21 CFR § 312.61].

You failed to administer the investigational drug only to subjects under your
supervision or under the supervision of a sub-investigator responsible to you.

A. During the inspection, FDA was informed that the study .——— 155
and #156 were sent to subject —— The subject’s wife reportedly
administered the

B. The inspection documented that you Q;prliédlshipped the investigational
drug to subject \— located in <= The subject self-administered

the: - without your supervision or the supervision of a
sub-investigator.
C.  You supplied the investigational drug to subject ——= The

Prggress Notes dated ~=——"document that the subject's primary care
physician "will admilnister the ~ "~

During the informal conference, you stated, “thatis'an activlty that in retrospect
was a wrong thing to do, someihing that I'would not do now.”

Pursuant to 21 CFR §§ 16.22 and 312.70(a), you are hereby notified of your opportunity
for a regulatory hearing before FDA to determine whether you should be disqualified
from receiving investigational drugs. The matters to be considered at the hearing are
set forth in paragraphs 1 through 4, above, Under FDA regulations, you have the right
to be advised and represented by counsel at all times: - Any regulatory hearing on this
matter will be governed by the regulations-in Title 21 of the Code of Federal
Reaulations, Part 16, and the FDA's guidelines on électroriic media coverage of public

administrative proceedings, 21 CFR § 10, Subpart C. Copies of those regulations are
enclosed.

Your written request for a hearing must be postmarked, if mailed, or received, if faxed,
(with the original to follow by mail) within ten (10) working days of receipt of this lefter.
Please address the letter to:

Dr. James F. McComack, Coordinator - -
Bioresearch Monitoring Program

Division of Compliance Policy (HFC-230)
Food and Drug Admlmstratlon

5600 Fishers Lane

Rockville, Maryland 20857 -

Telephone {301) 827-0425

Facsimile (301) 827-0482
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If no response to this letter is received by that time, you will be deemed to have waived
your right to a regulatory hearing, and a decision in this matter will be made based on
the facts available to the agency.

A request for a hearing may not rest upon mere allegations or denials but must present
specific facts showing that there is:a genuine and substantial issue of fact that warrants
a hearing. Pursuant to 21 CFR § 16.26, a request for a hearing may be denled, in
whole or in part, if the Commissioner or his delegate determines that no genuine and
substantial issue of fact has been raised by the material submitted. A hearing will not
be granted on issues of policy or law. Written notice of a determination of summary
judgment will be provided, explaining the reasons for denial of the hearing.

If you wish to respond but do not desire a hearing, you should contact Dr. McCormack
within the time period specified above and send a written response containing your
reply. The letter should state that you waive your right to a hearing and that you want a
decision on the,matter to Be based on your written response and gther information
available to the agency.

The agency's offer to enter into a consent agreement remains open. Entering into a
consent agreement would terminate the administrative procedures, but would not
preclude the possibility of a corollary judicial proceeding. You were sent a draft consent
agreement enclosed with FDA's letter to you dated June 21, 2001. If you would like to
choose this option, please contact Dr. McCormack.

No final decision by FDA has been made at this time on your eligibility to continue to
use investigational drugs. Moreaver, there will be no prejudgment of this matter if you
decline to enter into a consent agreement and decide instead sither to request a
regulatory hearing or to request that the decnsuon be based on information currently
available to the agency.

Please inform Dr. McCammack within ten (10) working days whether you wish to request
a hearing or to have this matter resolved by consent agreement or based on the
information available to the agency.

Sincerely yours,

(enuin & Bl

Dennis E. Baker
- Associate Commissioner for
" Regulatory Affairs



